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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of IDBI
MF Trustee Company Limited will be held on Wednesday, 30" day of July, 2025 at 4.15 p.m.
at a shorter notice through Video Conferencing/other Audio Video Means, to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS —

Item No. 1 — Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 including audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors,
Statutory Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

Item No. 2 —To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors:

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT approval of the members of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited is
accorded to authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors
as may be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139(5) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2025-26.

SPECIAL BUSINESS —

Item No. 3 — Appointment of Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN: 09008166)
Independent Director

Approval for appointment of Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN: 09008166) as an
Independent Director of the Company as recommended by the Board of Directors and in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
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2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to time and based on the
approval of Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for appointment of Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN:
09008166), being eligible, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for a period of two years from the date of his appointment on September
12, 2024 to September 11, 2026, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of 1DBI
Asset Management Limited be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No. 4 — Appointment of Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade (DIN:09320683) Independent
Director

Approval for appointment of Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade (DIN:09320683) as an Independent
Director of the Company as recommended by the Board of Directors and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to time and based on the
approval of Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for appointment of Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade (DIN:09320683),
being eligible, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to
hold office for a period of one year from the date of her appointment on June 19, 2025 to June
18, 2026, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of IDBI

Asset Management Limited be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Item No. 5 — Appointment of Shri Dinesh Pandey (DIN: 08765481) Independent Director

Approval for appointment of Shri Dinesh Pandey (DIN: 08765481) as an Independent Director
of the Company as recommended by the Board of Directors and in this regard, to consider and
if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force] read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, as amended from time to time and based on the
approval of Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded for appointment of Shri Dinesh Pandey (DIN: 08765481), being
eligible, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold
office for a period of one year from the date of his appointment on July 15, 2025 to July 14,
2026, as recommended by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of IDBI
Asset Management Limited be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps
as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of
IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited

Sd/-
Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan
DIN: 09008166
Chairman
Place : Mumbai
Date : July 24, 2025

Registered office:
IDBI Tower, World Trade Centre,
Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai 400 005
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NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF, THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, THE PROXY FORM DULY
COMPLETED SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED
TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. BLANK PROXY FORM IS
ENCLOSED.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS APROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING
FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT
OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING
RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT
AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

Members/Proxies/Representatives should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for
attending the meeting. Only Members carrying the attendance slips or holders of valid
proxies registered with the Company will be permitted to attend the meeting. In case of
shares held in joint names or shares held under different registered folios wherein the name
of the sole holder/first joint-holder is same, only the first joint-holder/sole holder or any
proxy appointed by such holder, as the case may be, will be permitted to attend the
meeting.

The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of business under Item no. 3-5 is attached herewith.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN: 09008166), was appointed as an Additional
Independent Director of the Board of your Company w.e.f September 12, 2024 in accordance
with the Articles of Association and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN: 09008166) holds
office upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. Based on the recommendation of the Board
of Directors, the Company proposing the candidature of Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan
(DIN: 09008166) to be appointed as an Independent Director at the AGM not liable to retire
by rotation, Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan, being eligible for appointment, has consented
to the proposed appointment and declared qualified.

The Board of Directors approved the appointment Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan (DIN:
09008166) as an Independent Director of the Company subject to approval of the Shareholders
in AGM of the Company.

The Board of Directors consider that Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan has requisite
expertise, versatility, extensive and enriched experience that will be of benefit to the Company
and hence considered his appointment as Independent Director.

None of the other Directors (other than Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan), Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the said Resolution. The
Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by
the members.

Item No. 4

Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade (DIN:09320683), was appointed as an Additional Independent
Director of the Board of your Company w.e.f June 19, 2025 in accordance with the Articles of
Association and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade (DIN:09320683) holds office upto
the date of the Annual General Meeting. Based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors, the Company proposing the candidature of Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade to be
appointed as an Independent Director at the AGM not liable to retire by rotation, Ms. Jayashree
Vijay Ranade, being eligible for appointment, has consented to the proposed appointment and
declared qualified.
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The Board of Directors approved the appointment Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade as an
Independent Director of the Company subject to approval of the Shareholders in AGM of the
Company.

The Board of Directors consider that Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade has requisite expertise,
versatility, extensive and enriched experience that will be of benefit to the Company and hence
considered her appointment as Independent Director.

None of the other Directors (other than Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade), Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the said Resolution. The
Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by
the members.

Item No. 5

Shri Dinesh Pandey (DIN: 08765481), was appointed as an Additional Independent Director
of the Board of your Company w.e.f July 15, 2025 in accordance with the Articles of
Association and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

As per Section 161 of the Act, Shri Dinesh Pandey holds office upto the date of the Annual
General Meeting. Based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, the Company
proposing the candidature of Shri Dinesh Pandey to be appointed as an Independent Director
at the AGM not liable to retire by rotation, Shri Dinesh Pandey, being eligible for appointment,
has consented to the proposed appointment and declared qualified.

The Board of Directors approved the appointment Shri Dinesh Pandey as an Independent
Director of the Company subject to approval of the Shareholders in AGM of the Company.

The Board of Directors consider that Shri Dinesh Pandey has requisite expertise, versatility,
extensive and enriched experience that will be of benefit to the Company and hence considered
his appointment as Independent Director.

None of the other Directors (other than Shri Dinesh Pandey), Key Managerial Personnel or
their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested in the said Resolution. The Board
recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the
members.
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Annexure

Disclosures required under Secretarial Standards -2 on general meeting pertaining to Item

No. 3
Sr. Particulars Details
No
1. | Name of Director Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan
2. | DIN 09008166
3. | Type Independent Director
4. | Date of Birth 04/05/1960
5. | Age 65 years
6. | Qualification B. Sc (agriculture), MBA, CAIIB
7. | No. of Equity Shares held in the | Nil
Company
8. | Experience Shri Shivan Jenamejayan K was the MD and CEO at
Dhanlaxmi Bank, Thrissur, Kerala till June 2024. He was
also the senior advisor at ERNST & YOUNG LLP
advising on IBC, Restructuring, Fund Raising of
corporates where E&Y had taken advisory assignments.
He was also associated with State Bank of India, Mumbai,
as the Chief General Manager heading different stressed
sectors accounts under power, telecom, EPC, Airlines,
Trading, jewellery etc. till 2020 and before that he was
serving as the General Manager, Head of Corporate
Banking- large corporates in private and public sector
including Adani Group, Torrent, Nirma, GSPC, Gujarat]
Gas etc. at State Bank of India, Gujrat, till 2017.
9. | Terms and Conditions As per the terms and conditions of appointment
10. | Date of first appointment September 12, 2024
11. | Number of Board Meetings 3
attended during the year
12. | Directorships held in  other Nil
Companies (31.03.2025)
13. | Particulars of Committee IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited- Audit Committee-
Chairmanship/Membership held | Member
in other Companies
(including this company)
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Annexure

Disclosures required under Secretarial Standards - 4 on general meeting pertaining to Item

No. 4

Sr. Particulars Details

No _

1. | Name of Director Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade

2. | DIN 09320683

3. | Type Independent Director

4. | Date of Birth 04.04.1964

5. | Age 61 years

6. | Qualification CA, Associate of Insurance Institute of India, Post graduate
diploma in Business Management

7. | No. of Equity Shares held in | Nil

the Company

8. | Experience Mrs. Jayashree Vijay Ranade is qualified Chartered
Accountant and spent 35 in years in various departments in
a Public Sector Reinsurance Company; General Insurance
Corporation of India (GIC). During her career with GIC,
she had handled various responsibilities in Finance,
Taxation & Investments Departments. She retired as CFO
of GIC in April 2024. During the service, she handled
various positions in GIC as well its associate companies;
including Head of Finance, India International Insurance
Pte Ltd, Singapore for 4 years.
She was also appointed as Nominee Director in IDBI
Trusteeship Services Ltd, GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Co.
during the period September 2021 till April 2024 and
Anglo French Drugs and Industries Ltd during the period
May 2023 to April 2024.
She was a visiting faculty at National Insurance Academy
& Insurance Institute of India.

9. | Terms and Conditions As per the terms and conditions of appointment

10. | Date of first appointment June 19, 2025

11.| Number of Board Meetings NA

attended during the year
12.| Directorships held in  other | Nil

Companies (31.03.2025)
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13.

Particulars of Committee
Chairmanship/Membership
held in other Companies
(including this company)

IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited- Audit Committee-
Member
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Annexure

Disclosures required under Secretarial Standards -2 on general meeting pertaining to Item
No. 5

Sr. Particulars Details
No _
1. | Name of Director Shri Dinesh Pandey
2. | DIN 08765481
3. | Type Independent Director
4. | Date of Birth 19/08/1959
5. | Age 66 years
6. | Qualification B.SC hons
7. | No. of Equity Shares held in the Nil
Company
8. | Experience Shri Dinesh Pandey is acting as an Independent
director on the Board of Chartered Speed Limited and
is a Whole time director of Chrysus Consultants
Private Limited. He is also a project advisor for C-
Edge Technologies Ltd where he is monitoring the
implementation of core banking solutions project of
National Assets Reconstruction Company Limited
(NARCL).
9. | Terms and Conditions As per the terms and conditions of appointment
10. | Date of first appointment July 15, 2025
11. | Number of Board Meetings NA
attended during the year
12.| Directorships held in  other Chartered Speed Limited
Companies (31.03.2025) Chrysus Consultants Private Limited
13. | Particulars of Committee 1. IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited- Audit
Chairmanship/Membership held in Committee- Member
other Companies (including this| 2. Chartered Speed Limited - Audit Committee-
company) Member
3. Chartered Speed Limited - NRC Committee-
Chairman
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PROXY FORM

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN ; U65991MH2010PL.C199326

Name of the Company : IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

Registered Office : IDBI Tower, WTC Complex, Cuffe Parade, Colaba,
Mumbai - 400 005.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the the fifteen Annual General Meeting of the member
of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited which will be held Wednesday, 30th day of July, 2025
at 4.15 p.m. through Video Conferencing.

Member’s Folio Member’s/Proxy Name Member’s/Proxy Signature
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PROXY FORM

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN ; U65991MH2010PLC199326

Name of the | : IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

Company

Registered Office : IDBI Tower, WTC Complex, Cuffe Parade, Colaba,
Mumbai - 400 005.

Name of the
members(s)

Registered address

E-mail 1d

Folio No/Client Id

DP ID
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I/We, being the members(s) of the Company holding ___ shares of the above name company,

hereby appoint

1

Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature

,or failing him

Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature

,or failing him

Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the
Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the member of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited
which will be held on Wednesday, 30" day of July, 2025 at 4.15 p.m. and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as are
indicated below:

Resolution No.
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2

K

oo

S

Signed this................ dayof................ 2025 Affix
Revenue

Signature of shareholder............................. Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)........................

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors takes pleasure to present the Fifteenth Annual Report on the affairs of
IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited (‘IDBI MFT’ or ‘Company’) along with the audited accounts
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (Financial Year 2024-25).

HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized as below:-

(Rs.in Lakh)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Total Income 79.58 14.26
Total Expenses 20.71 22.90
Exceptional Items/Prior Period 0 0
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 58.87 (8.64)
Tax expenses:
Current Tax 6.06 0
Deferred Tax 0.66 (0.49)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 52.15 (8.15)
Earnings per equity share:
Basic(in Rs.) 26.08 (4.08)
Diluted(in Rs.) 26.08 (4.08)

On account of no Mutual Fund operations, no trustee fee income earned during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025. The company has earned other income by way interest on fixed deposits
and capital gain on sale of mutual fund investments aggregating Rs.79.55 lakh. The company has
earned operating profit of Rs.58.84 lakh during the current FY 2025 as compare to loss of Rs.8.64
lakh incurred during the previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the company’s Authorised Share Capital was Rs. 50 lakhs and issued,
subscribed & paid up share capital was Rs. 20 lakhs divided into 2 lakhs equity shares of Rs. 10 /-
each. IDBI Bank Limited holds 100% shares of the Company (which includes 1 share each held by
the nominee shareholders, in order to comply with the provisions on minimum shareholders as per
the Companies Act, 2013)
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RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND THE COMPANY’S STATE OF AFFAIRS

IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited (‘/DBI MFT’) acts as a ‘Trustee’ to IDBI Mutual Fund
appointed vide Trust Deed dated February 19, 2010. The year 2024 - 25 is the fifteenth year of
operation of your company. IDBI MFT performs a supervisory role over the operations of IDBI
Asset Management Limited (‘/DBI AMC’). For performing the said role, IDBI MFT receives
Trusteeship fees at a defined rate, as prescribed under SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and
the Trust Deed.

Business Environment and Mutual Fund Industry:

The year 2024-25 was eventful year which witnessed achievement of its peak level by Indian Sensex
with intermittent corrections, in the midst of geopolitical uncertainties, currency depreciation and
domestic market volatility challenges. The year’s major events included; general elections in June
2024, escalation of conflict in the Middle East and the U.S. Presidential Election (November 2024).

Notwithstanding the intermittent corrections, the markets showed a consistent upward trend until
September 2024, scaling new all-time highs. Strong domestic economic prospects, robust domestic
institutional investor inflows, foreign portfolio investments, anticipated policy pivots from major
central banks, etc., drove the uptrend. However, this trend has moderated since October 2024, driven
by economic stimulus measures in China, the US Presidential elections and valuation concerns.

BSE Sensex and NSE Sensex registered growth of 8.40% and 8.1% respectively in FY 2024-25 (till
Nov 2024) over closing of March 2024 as compared to growth of 24.90% and 28.60% respectively
registered in FY 2023-24.

Healthy corporate earnings, stable macro fundamentals, efficient and robust technology architecture
facilitating efficient trading, clearing, and depository systems, and trust garnered by mutual fund
ecosystem and online digital investment platforms have encouraged greater participation in capital
markets.

The period since the pandemic has seen a surge in individual and household participation as capital
market investors through direct (trading in markets through their accounts) and indirect (through
mutual funds) channels. Investor participation has been a contributor, with number of investors
growing from 4.9 crore in FY20 to 13.2 crore as of 31 December 2024.

The mutual fund industry has grown well in the last few years and is now crucial in channeling
financial savings towards risk capital formation and leveraging technology and innovation. The rise
in retail participation through mutual funds is reflected in the doubling of unique investors from 2.9
crore in FY21 to 5.6 crore as of December 2024. The total number of folios (excluding FOF domestic
schemes) increased from 17.8 crore at the end of FY24 to 22.5 crore at the end of December 2024,
and retail investors held mutual fund units worth Rs.18.6 lakh crore. This surge in participation,
coupled with strong market performance, has led to a remarkable increase in mutual funds' assets
under management, which rose to Rs.66.9 lakh crore as of December 2024, registering 25.3 per cent
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growth from March 2024. The mutual fund segment presently has more than 10 crore Systematic

Investment Plan (SIP) accounts, with cumulative SIP inflows of Rs.10.9 lakh crore since inception.
Monthly average gross SIP flows have more than doubled in the last three years, from Rs.0.10 lakh
crore in FY22 to Rs.0.23 lakh crore in FY25. Aided by these sustained inflows, mutual fund
ownership in Indian listed companies has risen to a fresh all-time high of 9.5 per cent in the quarter
ending September 2024, from 8.7 per cent in FY24.

(Source: Annual Report 2024-25, Ministry of Finance)

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

Your company was incorporated to act as “Trustee” to IDBI Mutual Fund vide Trust Deed dated
February 19, 2010. After getting approval of the Regulator (SEBI) and the Unitholders, on July 29,
2023, all schemes of IDBI Mutual Fund were successfully transferred to LIC AMC. Hence, there
were no mutual fund activity/ operations under supervision of the company after July 2023.

DIVIDEND
Company has declared interim dividend of Rs. 20 per share during the financial year 2024-25.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there is no unpaid
/unclaimed dividend.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company has made a Net profit of Rs.52.15 lakhs during the Financial Year 2024-25, and
after adjustment of Rs.40 lakh of interim dividend, balance of Rs.12.15 lakh was transferred to
Reserves.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review, there was no foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes that occurred in between the financial year ended March 31, 2025
and the date of the report, affecting the financial position of your company. However, SEBI vide its
letter dated November 02 2023, March 12, 2024, August 23,2024 and February 13, 2025, has
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granted extension of time to surrender Mutual Fund Certificate of Registration held by IDBI Mutual
Fund till September 30, 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Changes in Board of Directors: -

During the year under review, there were changes in the composition of Board of Directors of your
company, which is detailed in the table given below:

The composition of the Board, as on March 31, 2025 was as under: -

S. Name of the Director Designation Date of Date of
No Appointment | Resignation
/Retirement
1. | Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan Chairman & September 12, -
(DIN: 09008166) Additional 2024
Independent
Director
2. | Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit Additional September 12, |April 23, 2025
(DIN: 10758177) Independent 2024
Director
3. | Shri Sunil Bansal Additional February 28, |June 24, 2025
(DIN: 00713868) Independent 2025
Director
4. | Shri Iswar Padhan Nominee Director February 06, -
(DIN: 03560275) 2024

Shri Avinash Chander Mahajan (DIN: 00041661), Shri Jagadeesan Jayaraman (DIN: 02423487),
Shri Parthasarathy Krishnamurthy (DIN:05336749) retired from the Board of IDBI MFT after
completing their second term as Independent Director on September 25, 2024.

Shri Sunit Joshi, who was appointed as Additional Independent Director on September 12, 2024
resigned from the Board w.e.f January 15, 2025. Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit, who was
appointed as Additional Independent Director on September 12, 2024 resigned from the Board w.e.f
April 23, 2025.

Shri Sunil Bansal was appointed on the Board of IDBI MFT as Additional Independent Director on
February 28, 2025 resigned from the Board w.e.f June 24, 2025. Mrs. Jayashree Vijay Ranade was
appointed on the Board of IDBI MFT as Additional Independent Director on June 19, 2025. Shri
Dinesh Pandey was appointed on the Board of IDBI MFT as Additional Independent Director on
July 15, 2025.
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Retirement by Rotation

Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that two-third of the total number of Directors
should be retiring director, of which one-third of the Directors should retire at every Annual General
Meeting. Also, as per the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent
Directors are not liable to retire by rotation. Further, the Articles of Association of your company
provides that the Chairman is also not liable to retire by rotation.

The Board of your company comprises of the Chairman who is an Independent Director and Two
more Independent Directors and one nominee director as on the date of the Annual General Meeting.

As the Board of your company comprises of one nominee director and three Independent Directors
only, your company has no Director to retire at the Annual General Meeting of the company.

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide the operations of your company. The
notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors of the company. The Agenda
of the Board meeting is circulated a week prior to the Board meeting and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board and committee meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings as the case may be.

During the year under review, total of seven Board meetings were held, the details of the same has
been summed up as under: -

Dates on which Board Meetings were Total strength of the Directors present
held Board

April 18, 2024 4

June 19, 2024

July 18, 2024

September 12, 2024

October 18, 2024

December 12, 2024

N N IR IS
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January 14, 2025
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS

2025)

Name of the Director Number of
Meetings Attended

Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan(DIN: 09008166) 3

Shri Sunil Bansal (DIN: 00713868) 0

Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit (DIN: 10758177) 3

Shri Iswar Padhan (DIN: 03560275) 6

Shri Parthasarathy Krishnamurthy (DIN: 05336749) (retired w.e.f 4

September 25, 2024)

Shri Avinash Chander Mahajan (DIN:00041661) (retired w.e.f September 4

25, 2024)

Shri Jagadeesan Jayaraman (DIN:02423487) (retired w.e.f September 25, 4

2024)

Shri Sunit Vasant Joshi (DIN:02962154) (resigned w.e.f January 15, 3

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD:

The Audit Committee was constituted in the year 2010 and adopted a charter for its functioning.
The Committee was further reconstituted as per the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Charter was also redefined in line with the provisions of the said Act. The primary objective of
the Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s financial
reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency,

integrity and quality of financial reporting.

The Composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025 was as under: -

: . Date of I?ate o.f
S. Name of the Director Particulars Appointment Resignation /
No. Retirement
1. | Shri Sunil Bansal Additional February 28, 2025 | June 24, 2025
(DIN: 00713868) Independent
Director
2. | Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan | Additional | September 12, 2024 -
(DIN: 09008166) Independent
Director
3. | Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit Additional | September 12, 2024 | April 23, 2025
(DIN: 10758177) Independent
Director
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During the year under review, the Committee met six times, the detail of the same has been summed

up as under: -
Dates on which Audit Committee Total strength of the Director’s present
Meetings were held Committee
April 18, 2024 3 3
June 19, 2024 3 3
July 18, 2024 3 3
October 18, 2024 3 3
December 12, 2024 3 3
January 14, 2025 3 3

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name of the Director Number of Meetings
Attended

Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan(DIN: 09008166) 3

Shri Sunit Vasant Joshi (DIN:02962154) (resigned w.e.f 3

January 15, 2025)

Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit (DIN: 10758177) 3

Shri Sunil Bansal (DIN: 00713868) 0

Shri Parthasarathy Krishnamurthy (DIN: 05336749) (retired 3

w.e.f September 25, 2024)

Shri Avinash Chander Mahajan (DIN:00041661) (retired w.e.f 3

September 25, 2024)

Shri Jagadeesan Jayaraman (DIN:02423487) (retired w.e.f 3

September 25, 2024)

IX. OTHER COMMITTEES

a. Committee of Independent Directors

The company has constituted a Committee of its Independent Directors as provided under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Committee

of Independent Directors was as under: -
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S. Name of the Director Particulars Date of Date of
No. Appointment Resignation /
Retirement
1. | Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam Chairperson & | September 12, -
Shivan(DIN: 09008166) Additional 2024
Independent
Director
2. | Shri Sunil Bansal (DIN: Additional February 28, 2025| June 24, 2025
00713868) Independent
Director
3. | Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit Additional September 12, April 23, 2025
(DIN: 10758177) Independent 2024
Director

The Committee met once during the financial year 2024-25 on March 13, 2025 where all the

Directors were present.

b. Risk Management Committee

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee as required under SEBI circular
on the Risk Management Framework. The Composition of the Risk Management Committee as

approved by the Board is as under:

S. Name of the Director
No.

Particulars

Date of Date of
Appointment  |Resignation
Retirement

1. | Shri Jenamejayan Kamalam

Chairperson &

September 12, 2024 -

Shivan(DIN: 09008166) Additional
Independent
Director
2. | Shri Sunil Bansal (DIN: Additional February 28, 2025 [June 24, 2025
00713868) Independent
Director
3. | Shri Manjunath Ganapati Pandit Additional September 12, 2024 | April 23,
(DIN: 10758177) Independent 2025
Director

The meetings of Risk Management Committee were held once during the year under review. The
detail of the same has been summed up as under: -

Dates of Corporate Risk Management
Committee Meetings

Total strength of the Director’s present
Committee

19™ June, 2024

3 3
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name of the Director Number of Meetings Attended

Shri Jagadeesan Jayaraman (DIN: 02423487) (retired 1
w.e.f September 25, 2024)

Shri Avinash Chander Mahajan (DIN: 00041661) 1
(retired w.e.f September 25, 2024)

Shri Parthasarathy Krishnamurthy (DIN:05336749) 1
(retired w.e.f September 25, 2024)

X. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

XI.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability confirm:-

a.

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and the profit and loss of the
company for that period.

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis, however necessary
disclosures have been made as per AS-24 in view of the transfer of all the schemes of IDBI
Mutual Fund to LIC MF.

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively; and

Those proper internal financial controls were laid down and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 including
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 the copy of the annual return of the company will be available
on the website of IDBI Mutual Fund at www.idbimutual.co.in.
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STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The company has received necessary disclosures from the Independent Directors under Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he meets all the criteria laid down in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their
status as Independent Director during the year.

DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There is no Director’s Appointment and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY

The company acts as a Trustee to IDBI Mutual Fund. The Trustees have been appointed by the
Sponsor (‘IDBI Bank Limited’) vide Trust deed dated February 19, 2010. Further the company has
appointed IDBI Asset Management Limited (‘IDBI AMC ) as Investment Manager to IDBI Mutual
Fund vide Investment Management Agreement dated February 26, 2010. Thus, the company has
the function more of a supervisory on the management of operations by IDBI AMC which are
guided by the SEBI Regulations and directives and AMFI guidelines issued from time to time. In
compliance with the SEBI circular, IDBI AMC has in place a policy on managing risks related to
the business and is duly implemented.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to your company during
the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186

During the financial year under review, your company did not seek/ provide for loans and guarantee.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188

All the Related Party Transactions are entered in the ordinary course of business and are on arm’s
length basis, and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Materially significant related party transactions made by the company with Promoters, Directors or
Key Managerial Personnel etc. are being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as Annexure — “4”.

All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Your company is not involved in industrial manufacturing and has not consumed energy more than
required for its day to day operations.

(A) Conservation of energy-

(1) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Not Applicable
(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Not Applicable
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: Not Applicable

(B) Technology absorption-

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable
(if) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution: Not Applicable
(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year):- Not Applicable

a) The details of technology imported

b) The year of import

c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;

and

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable

Your company has been increasingly using Information Technology systems in its operations.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

The Statutory Auditors of your company are appointed by the office of CAG. Further, as per the
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of Auditors appointed by the office of
CAG, shall be fixed by the company in the Annual General Meeting. As till date communication
has not been received regarding appointment of the Auditors by the CAG and hence, the Board
needs to be authorised to fix the remuneration of the Auditors as and when the appointment is
advised by the CAG. Accordingly, the Notice of the Annual General Meeting includes an item
pertaining to authorizing the Board to fix remuneration of the Auditors for the year 2025-26.

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification. The notes to the accounts referred to in
the Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments from the
Directors.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable
secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and subsequent
modifications thereof and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT

The Directors confirm that all Board members have affirmed compliance with the company’s code
of conduct for the financial year 2024-25.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to your company since there are no employees in the company during the year under
review.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS OF THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE

The report of Statutory Auditor is free from any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS ETC.

A meeting of Independent Directors of the company was held to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, including the performance of Chairperson of the company.

The performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and its committees and of every individual
Director has been conducted as per the Director’s Appointment and Evaluation policy of the
Company.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your company does not have any subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/Associate company within the
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013.
DEPOSITS

The company has not accepted any deposits and accordingly no amount was outstanding as on the
date of the Balance Sheet.
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XXVIII. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

XXIX.

XXX.

XXXI.

XXXIL.

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

Nil

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There are no frauds reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Since, the operations of the IDBI Mutual Fund are managed by IDBI AMC; your Company does
not have any employees and therefore the provisions of the said Act are not applicable to the
Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the
size and complexity of its operations. These are certified by the Statutory Auditor.

DISCLOSURE FOR COMPLIANCE UNDER THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

Since, the operations of the IDBI Mutual Fund are managed by IDBI AMC; your Company does
not have any employees and therefore the provisions of the said Act are not applicable to the
Company.

XXX11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board takes the opportunity to express their gratitude for the continued support and co-
operation extended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India as well as Reserve Bank of India,
IDBI Bank Limited, Registrars & Transfer Agents, Custodians, Bankers, Market Intermediaries and
Distributors, Government Agencies, Auditors, Association of Mutual Funds in India.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited

sd/-
Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan
DIN: 09008166
Chairman
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 16, 2025
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Annexure — “A”

FORM NO. AOC 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: -

arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any.

S. No. Particulars Details
1. Name(s) of the related party and IDBI Asset Management Limited — Group
nature of relationship. company.
2. Nature of To pay fees for Secretarial & Accounting
contracts/arrangements/transactions. | services.
3. Duration of the The arrangement is still in existence.
contracts/arrangements/transactions. | However, no major services are being taken
from IDBI Asset Management Limited after
transfer of all IDBI Mutual Fund schemes to
LIC AMC in July 2023.
4. Salient terms of the contracts or IDBI Asset Management Limited (“IDBI

AMC?”) being an investment manager to IDBI
Mutual Fund also provides secretarial and
account services to the company. The
employees of IDBI Asset Management
Limited manage the above services. Further
all other expenses towards utility bills etc are
borne by IDBI AMC.

Secretarial & accounting service expenses:
Certain common expenses incurred by IDBI
AMC such as Rent, Electricity, Maintenance
relating to Mumbai office premises and also a
portion of salary expenses for the services
rendered by IDBI AMC. Out of the above
common expenses IDBI AMC has charged
0.25% of the charges to MF Trustee Co. as MF
Trustee Co. does not have any employee on its
roll. However, no such charges charged since
transfer of all IDBI Mutual Fund Schemes to
LIC AMC in July 2023. These AMC officials
take care of the work relating to secretarial
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matters, conducting of meetings, ROC work,
accounts/tax matters, SEBI compliance etc.
No such charges are paid by the company after

July 29, 2023
5. Date of approval by the Board. October 22, 2013
6. Amount paid as advances, if any. NIL
7. Justification for entering into the The secretarial and account services of the

contracts/arrangements/transactions. | company are managed by the employees of
the IDBI AMC (Investment Manager to IDBI
Mutual Fund), since the company has no
employees on roll. Also since the company
also shares premises due to above services, it
is prudent to also share other expense with
IDBI AMC. Thus with approval of Board, a
percentage share was arrived at so as to cover
the expenses and services and a policy in this
regard was formulated and put in place.
However, as mentioned above no such
charges are being recovered by IDBI AMC
due to no operational activities at present.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited

sd/-
Jenamejayan Kamalam Shivan
DIN: 09008166
Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 16, 2025
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2025.

The preparation of financial statements of IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 22 April 2025.

The assets under management through various schemes managed by IDBI MF Trustee
Company Limited are not reflected in its Balance Sheet, since these assets do not form part of
the IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited. Therefore, | do not look into operation of these
schemes including decision making regarding acquisition, management and disposal of the
assets managed by the IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited and express no opinion on the
soundness of the investments.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct the supplementary audit of the Financial Statements of IDBI MF Trustee Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under Sec 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(Vijay Nanalal Kothari)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai

Place : Mumbai
Date : July 9, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDBI MF Trustee Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 20 & 21 to the financial statements regarding the scheme
transfer agreement dated December 29, 2022 whereby the mutual fund schemes of IDBI were
transferred to LIC mutual fund for a consideration. The Company had only one source of
revenue from operations i.e. providing trusteeship services to IDBI Mutual Fund schemes.
After transfer of all schemes by IDBI AMC to LIC MF AMC, it does not have business income
from }uly 30, 2023 onw




These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

However, as mentioned in note no. 21 to the financial statements, the Sponsor, IDBI Bank
Limited (Holding Company of the Company) continues to hold the requisite licenses from
SEBI and has also received an extension in time limit for surrendering these licenses up to
September 30, 2025. Further, the Company has a positive net worth and sufficient resources to
meet its liabilities. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information inctuded in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon, The
Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s

report

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management & Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuting the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the prepafy nd presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are frg; I misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material miisstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisls,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion,
Our gonclusjons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit tindings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company in so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts)Rules, 2014.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “ Annexure B”
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
provided for any remuneration payable to its directors during the current year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have any
material impact on its financial position;

ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts;
as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses does not
arise.

iii. There has not been any occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. Thus,
the question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise,

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note No. 29 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or Ioaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note No. 29 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) & (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. Asstated in @e 1&93( the financial statements, the interim dividend declared &
paid by the;/@%% g,r%ng the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act,
as apphcab{é \1 COOBRTA ;
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vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from 1st April, 2023

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year, for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with once it was implemented. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

3. Report on Directions / Sub directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of
India under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act

In terms of the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under
sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such checks of the books &
records of the Company, as we considered appropriate and according to the information
& explanation given to us, we give in “Annexure C”, a statement on the matter specified
in the said directions.

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.121142W / W100122
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Date: April 22, 2025
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

In our opinion and to the best our information and according to the explanations provided to
us by the Company and based on our examination of the books of account in the normal
course of audit, we state that;

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

- The Company has disposed off all items of its property, plant and equipment during the
year and does not own any Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets as at the
year end. Hence reporting under Clauses 3(i)(a), (b), (c), and (d) of the Order are not
applicable.

(@) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Company as at 31st March, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and the
rules made thereunder.

(i) Inrespect of its inventories —

(iid)

(i)

a)

b)

The Company did not hold any inventory as at the year end. Therefore, comment
under this clause has not been given,

As explained to us & based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of T 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks and financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans or provided
any guarantees or securities to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other
parties during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a), (), (d), (e) & (f) of the
Order is not applicable However, the Company has made investments in mutual funds
during the year, and as required under clause 3(iif)(b) of the Order, in our opinion, the
investments made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

The Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as
specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of

investments




(vii)

(@)

(b)

(vii)

(ix)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits during
the year. Therefore reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation provided to us, the maintenance of cost
records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under Sub-Section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company and accordingly comment under Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable

In respect of statutory dues:

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has
been subsumed into GST,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no undisputed statutory dues as
mentioned above in arrears as at 315t March, 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax
or duty of customs or duty of excise, value added tax or Goods & Service Tax which
have not been deposited on account of any disputes,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

(a) The company has not borrowed any amounts from banks, financial institutions,
government or through issue of debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Order is not applicable

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Hence
reporti ﬁ%/rﬁigi%%gse 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company has not raised
any funds on short-term basis during the year, Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of
the Order is not applicable

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
does not hold investments in any subsidiary, associate or joint ventures as defined under
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
does not hold investments in any subsidiary, associate or joint ventures as defined under
Companies Act, 2013, Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments during the year. Hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of share or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and to the
best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees noticed or reported during the year nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the central- government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with the provisions of section 177 & 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with related parties
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statemgp@ig&%ﬁsgdanee with Accounting Standard 18, ‘Related Party Disclosureg.’,
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply
with the provisions of section 138 of the Act. Therefore, comment under Clause 3 (xiv)
{a) & (b) are not applicable to the Company and has not been given.

According to the information & explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected to its directors and hence the
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) & (b} In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) & (b)
of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information & explanations provided to us during the course of our
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit. However, the Company had incurred cash losses during the previous financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its Habilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantée nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

provisions of secj gﬁ;}?%;the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company
) ‘1‘9 b

Bt Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are
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(xxi)  The Company does not have any subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture. Accordingly,
there is no preparation of consolidated financial statements, Accordingly, the reporting
required under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable.

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 121142W / W100122
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Membership No. 143181

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2025
UDIN: 25143181BMKWFE8354



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) referred to in paragraph 2 (f) on Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements of our report.

Opinion

We have audifed the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IDBI MF Trustee
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in general, in all material respects, an adequate internal
tinancial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were found operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,’
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

stem over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.



Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fiym's Registration No. 121142W / W100122
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in our report of even date to the members of IDBI MF Trustee Company
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31t March, 2025.

Sr. No. Directions u/s 143 (5) of the

Companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s reply on action taken
on the direction

Impact on
Financial
Statements.

1 Whether the Company has
system in place to process all
the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the
implications  of  accounting
transactions outside IT system
on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial
implications, if any, may be
stated.

Yes, according to the
information &  explanation
given to us and based on our
examination of the records of
the Company, the Company
has system in place to process
all the accounting transactions
through IT system. In our
opinion, there are no
accounting transactions
processed outside IT system
which may affect the integrity
of the accounts,

NIL

2 Whether  there is  any
restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made
by a lender to the Company due
to the Company’s inability to
repay the loan? If vyes, the
financial impact may be stated.

In our opinion and according to
the information & explanation
given to us and based on our
examination of the records of
the Company, the Company
does not have any borrowings /
loans and accordingly there
isn't any restructuring or
waiver / write off of debts /
loans / interest, etc,

NIL

3 Whether funds received /[
receivable for specific schemes
from central / state agencies
were properly accounted for /
utilized as per its terms &
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

According to the information &
explanations given to us and
based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the
company has not received any
funds for specific schemes from
central / state agencies during
the year.

NIL

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No. 121142W / W100122
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IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
{CIN:UB5991MH2010PLC199326)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{Rs. in Thousands)

Particulars Note | As atMarch 31, | As af March 31,
, 2025 2024
| |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i|Shareholders’ funds
{a) Share capilal 3 2,000.00 2,000.00
(b) Rescrves and surplus 4 15,613.42 14,398.39
' 17,613.42 16,398.39
Z2{Non-current liabilities
3iCurrent liabilities
{a)  Other current liabilities 5 157 .40 142,40
157.40 142.40
TOTAL 17,770.82 16,540.79
Il |JASSETS
Non-current assets
1){a) Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets
(iy  Property, Plant and Equipment 6 - 79.39
{b) Non-current investments 7 1421.26 16,032.33
{c) Deferred Tax Assets(Net) 8 - 56,02
1,421.26 16,177.74
2|Current assets
{a) Cash and Bank Balances 9 15,662.42 16.45
(b) Short Term Loans and Advances 10 665.89 336.60
(c) {ther current assets 11 31.25 10.00
16,349.56 363.05
TOTAL 17,770.82 16,540.79
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-39
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In terms of our report attached

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 121142W  W100122

Rahil Dadia

Partner

Membership No.:143181
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 22, 2025

For and on behaif of the Board
IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited

J\
(lswar Padhan) (Sunil Bansal)
Director Director
DIN: 00713868

DIN: 0356027




DB MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

{CIM:UG5991MH2010PLC199326)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2b25

{Rs. in Thousands)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note |  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I.|Revenue From Operations 12 . . -
I1.}Other income 13 -7 7.955.56 -
lILiTotal Income {E +11) 7,955.56 -
IV.iExpenses:
Depreciation & Amortisation 6 5095 106.46
Other Expenses 14 2,020.30 1,185.52
Total Expenses 2071.25 1,271.98
Profit before prior period and extraordinary items and tax
V| (HEIV) 5,884.31 {1,271.98)
VI.|Prior Period ttems -
VIL|Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - Vi) 5,884.31 {1,271.98)
Vill.iExtracrdinary ltems - -
iX.| Profit hefore tax {Vik Vill) 5,884.31 {1,271.98)
X.|Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 605.54 -
(2) Deferred tax 66.02 11.06
{3} Tax adjustment in respect of earlier vears - -
X1.|Profit for the year from continuing operations 521275 {1,260.92)
AlL|Profit from discontinuing operations {IX-XI)
{Refer note no. 20) 3.04 408.50
Xill Tax expense of discontinuing cperations 0.76 36.58
XIV|Profit from Discontinuing operations (after tax} (XI1-X11) 2.28 44508
XV|Profit for the period (X + XIV) £,215.03 (815.84)
Earnings per equity share: Basic and diluted 15 26.08 (4.08)
Nominal value per share (Rupes) 10 10
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-39

In terms of our report attached

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 121142W / W100122
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ahil Dadia
Partner
Membership No.:143181
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 22, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board

IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited
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Director
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BBl MF Trustee Company Limited
{CIN:US5991MH2G10PLC199326)
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2025 4
{Rs. in Thousands}

For the year ended March 31,] Forthe year endet March
2025 . 3, 2024
{A) iCash Flow from Qperating Activiies :
1, Profit from the year from continiting operations helore taxes 5,884 .31 {1.271.98)
11 Adjuslments for.-
- Depraciation 50.85 106,46
- Interest from FOR 11.051.64)
- Loss! w off fixed assets 2590
- Nat {gain} Loss on sale of inveslment, {6,903.92) .
2) Operating cashflow lrom corlinuing operalion belore Working capital changes (1 -+ 11 {1,994.40) {1,165.52)
H. Profit from the year from discontinuing operations i 3.04 408.50
Adiustments for:- ’
- Deprecialion - 5243
- Met {gain)/ Loss on sale of investments . {406.67)
| - Interest on income tax refund/ bank FDY bonds {3.04) {7.44)
) Operating cashllow from Discentinuing Operalicns belors Working capial changes (1« If) . 46.82
Yotal Oparating profit before working capital chanyes c=(ath} (1.994.40) {1,118.70)
¢) Adjustinents for (Increase)f Decrease in operating assets
1. From Continuing Operations
{increase)! decrease in short-term foans and advances (367,87} {172.93)
{Increase)f decrease in Loag term loans and advancas - ; 126.84
increased/{decrease) in olher curent assets
Adjustments for {ingrease)f Decrease in operating Liabitlties
Increases{tecrease) in lrade payables E -
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities & provisions 15.00 {146.00)
Net Changes in working capital of continuing Operations (e ) 35287 . (190.89)
11. From Discontinuing operations ’ )
(Increase)/ decrease in frade receivables - 28082
(Increase) docrease in shart-term loans and advances
{increase)f decrease in Long Term loans and advances
Adjustments for (Increase)! Decrease in operating Liahilities
Increased{decrease} in Irade payables - (128.82}
Increasef{decrease) in other current liabllilias & provisions . . 112,02
Net Changes in working capital of discontinuing Operations {f} . 139.78
Net changes In working capital g= {a ¢ ) (352.87) (30.31)
Gash generated frem opsrating activities h= {¢+ ) {2.347.21 {1,469.01}
L From centinaing operations
- Direct taxes paidirefund (net}= i (568.96) 64 15
Cash from Gontinuing Operating Activities e+l {3,016.23) {1,291.46}
{l. From Discontinuing operations
- Direct taxes (paid}frefund {net)= i01.24
Cash generated from discontinuing operating activities= f+] 101.24 185.60
Net Cash from/ [used in) Operating activities (A} (2,914.89) {1,104.86)
{B} tCash Flow from Investing activities
|, From continuing operations
Purchase of property, plant and eauiprment and intangible assets . .
Purchase of Investments / Fixed Deposits (17,195.00) (160.00)
Proceeds from sale of Investments 23.070.02 1,215.02
Proceeds from sale of Assals 254 -
Interest received 1,030,368 :
Cash Flow from Investing activities of continuing Operations 6,007.92 1,055.02
k. Cash flow from investing activities of discentinuing operations
interest received A0 7.44
Met Cash from / {used in] Invasting Activities (B) 6,910.96 1,062.46
{C) |Cash Flow from Financial activities - -
Dividend paid {4,000.00)
Net Cash fremf {used in) in Financial Activities {C) {4,000.00)
Net Increase in cash & cash Equivalents rom Conltinaing Qperations {108.31) {236.44}
Netincrease in cash & cash Equivalents from discontinuing Operalions 104,28 194.04
Mzt increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents for the year (A+B+C) {4.00) (42,40}
[ Cash & Cash Equivalants al the beqining of the year 16.48 58.85
{ Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year* 12.42 16.45
Note:
1, The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Melhod"
2. Comgonenls of cash and cash equivatents considered only for the purpose of cash fow slalement as follows .
[Particulars As at As at
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{it Cash on hand 0.00 0.00
(i} Batances in current account wilh the Banks 1242 16.45
(i) Balance in deposit accounts with original maturily of less than 3 menlhs Q.00 0.00
Tetal 12.42 16.45

3. Pravious vear period's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary in order to confirm to currenl year period's
classification.

in terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP 1DB! MF frustee Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

F 11420/ W1 00122 - \\‘./Y \
747 2 owres Ay T WA
i 55
Rahil Dadia ”‘ ACODNHTRA /. L fiswar Padhan) {Sunil Bansal}
Partner ,/' — ‘_//YE' & Birector Director
Membership No.:143181 & Mi;mw‘-fwf DiN: 03560275 DiN: 00713868
Place: Mumbai Fenmr

Date: April 22, 2025 W \/ .




IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanving Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear
ended March 31, 2025

1. Background

.

[DBI MF Trustee Company Limited (“the Company’) was incorporated on January
25,2010 as a Public Limited Company. The principal activity of the Cqmpany is to act
as Trustee for the schemes of the Mutual Fund ("the Fund"} by dcvisiné various mutual
fund schemes for raising funds and deploying them to carn reasonable returns. The
company has been appointed as Trustees for IDBI Mutual %"u'nd. The company has
appointed IDBI Asset Management Ltd (IDBI AMC) as manager to manage 1DBI
Mutual Fund Schemes. The trustee Fee being received from IDBI Mutual Fund
schemes is the only source of income for the company.

Subsequent to acquisition of majority shareholding of IDBI Bank Ltd (IDBI Bank is
sponsor and major sharcholder of IDBI Asset Management Ltd) by LIC in the year
2019, LIC also considered to be sponsor (through IDBI AMC) of IDBI Mutual Fund.
As LIC has already sponsored LIC Mutual Fund and having majority shareholding in
L1C Mutual Fund Asset Management Ltd, in terms of SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations
1996, LIC cannot have 10% or more sharcholding in another AMC which is managing
other mutual fund. In view of this, IDBI AMC and LIC MF AMC entered into scheme
transfer agreement on December 29, 2022 for transfer of IDBI schemes to LIC MF for
a consideration. After receiving NOC from Competition Commission of India {(CCI)
on March 22, 2023 and approval from SEBI on April 03 and May 16, 2023, IDBI MF
schemes were completely merged with LIC MF schemes on July 29, 2023. However,
with approval of SEBI, IDBI Mutual Fund Certificate of Registration is continued to

be valid till September 30, 2025.
AT




2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

2.2

2.3

IDBI ME TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement
Jor the year ended March 31, 2023

Basis of preparation of financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to.comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") and the relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements have been prepared
on acerual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements are consistent wi"fth‘those-followed in the
previous year. All assets and liabilities are classified as current if it is expected to realize

or settle within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP) -in India requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
and disclosure of contingent liabilitics on the date of the financial statements. The
estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the
financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the
accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized

prospectively for current and future periods.

Going Concern Assumption

The company has prepared its financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 on
Going Concern Basis. (Refer to Note No,21 ~ “Accounting on going concern basis”

forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025.)




2.4

2.5

2.6

(DBIME TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement

Jor the year ended March 31, 2025

Cash & Cash Equivalent (for purpose of Cash Flow Statements)

Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less trom the date of
acquisition), highly liquid time deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts

of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as per Accounting Standard (AS) 3.
whereby profit/ (Ioss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activitics of the

Company arc segregated based on the available information.

Revenue Recognition

Trusteeship fees

Trusteeship fees is recognized on accrual basis as a percentage of the average daily net
assets of the schemes of IDBI Mutual funds, such that it does not exceed the rates
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') (Mutual Fund)
Regulations, 1996 (the 'Regulations') and any other amendments or offer document of
the respective schemes

Other income:

Income from Investments is accounted on accrual basis. Dividend income is
recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. Profit/loss on the sale of

investments is recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss on the trade date using




2.7

2.8

{DBI MEF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement
Jfor the year ended March 31, 2025

Scheme / Other Expenses .

Expenses of the scheme of IDBI Mutual Fund in excess of the limits prescribed by the
Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Fund) Regulations Act 1996 can be
borne by the Company. However, during the period under review no such expenses are
charged to profit and loss account. IDBI Asset Management Limited';has apportioned
a part of the Secretarial and other charges, Salary attributable to the IDBI MF Trustee
Company Limited on a reasonable and equitable basis and such expenses are charged

to the Profit and Loss account,

Property, plant & equipment

Owned Asset:

Assets held for own uses are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any. Cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises
Purchase price, duties, levies and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to its working condition of the intended use.

Depreciable amount for asset is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its estimated residual value.

The estimated usetul life of Property, plant and equipment which except as stated
hereunder is in line with schedule 11 10 the Companies Act 2013 and the method of
depreciation is set out. herein below:

For mobile phone the useful life is prescribed of 5 years under Companies Act, 2013,
whereas it is depreciated for a period of 3 years based on the technical advice

internally obtained by the company

Assets Useful Life Method of Depreciation
Plant & Equipment’s 15 years Straight Line Method
Furniture & Fittings 10 years Straight Line Method

<




2.8

IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Electrical Equipment’s | 10 years ; Straight Line Method

Vehicles 8 years Straight Line Method

Oftice Equipment’s 5 years Straight Line Method

Computers 3 years Straight Line Method

Mobile Phones 3 years Straight Line Method
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, an intangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and where its
cost can be reliably measured. The amortizable amount of intangible assets is

allocated over the best estimate of its useful life on a straight-line basis.

fmpairment of Assets

An asset is considered as impaired in accordance with Accounting Standard 28 on
Impairment of Assets when at the balance sheet date there are indications of
impairment and the carrying amount of asset, or where applicable the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the asset’s net selling price and value in use). The carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an
impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than
a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exisis or may have
decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of
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2.10

2.11

IDBIME TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes (o the Financial Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Earnings per share P

The company reports Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit
or loss for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. ‘#
The number of shares used in computing dituted EPS comprises the weighted
average shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also the weighted average
number of shares that could have been issued on the corwers_idn of all dilutive
potential equity shares, unless the results would be anti-dilutive.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the prevailing rates of exchange
on the date of transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are restated at the prevailing
rates of exchange as at the Balance Sheet date. All gains and losses arising out of
fluctuations in exchange rates are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Investments

Investments are classified into non-current and current investments. Securities and
other financial assets acquired and held for earning income by way of dividend and
interest and for the purpose of capital appreciation are classified as non-current
investments and are valued at their cost of acquisition. Decline in their value other
than temporary, if any, is recognized. Current investments arc carried at lower of

cost or market value,

2.12 Employee benefits

Compensation to employees for services rendered is accounted for in accordance

with Accounting Standard 15 on Employee Benefits.

2.13 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
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IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

assets, as defined in Accounting Standard 16 on Borrowing Costs, are capitalized as
4

part of the cost of the asset upto the date when the asset is ready for its intended usec.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
Segment Reporting )

The Company is primarily in a single segment i.e. in the business of Trusteeship.
The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature

and returns, the internal organization and management structure.
Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the income-tax law), deferred tax charge or credit
(reflecting the tax effectsof timing differences between accounting income and
taxable income for the period.)

Current taxes

Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of
Indian Income-tax Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax liability after
taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions. From F.Y. 2020-21 the Company
has opted to pay tax U/s 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, hence MAT is not

applicable on the company.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences
attributable to timing differences that result between the profits offered for income
taxes and the profits as per the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted

or substantively e¢nacted by the balance sheet date. The effect of a change in tax

e
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IDBIME TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement
for the vear ended March 31, 2025

rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the period that includes
the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that the asscts can be realized in the future. However, where
there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws"
deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty of realization of
such assets, Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the approp:i'i{ateness of their

respective carrying values at each balance sheet date.
Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligat'ion as a result of a
past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that: the outflow of resources would be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an
economic benetit will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the

period in which the change occurs.

ok ok ok ok ok ok ok o ok ok ok




I2BI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 3: Share Capital
_a, Details of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

(Rs. in Thousands}

As at March 31, As at March 34,
Particulars 2025 2024
Authorised
5,00,000 (R.Y. 5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each .
£,000.00 5,000.00
Issued
2,00,000 (P.Y. 2,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by IDB! Bank
Limited, Holding Company, and no Fresh alletment has been made in the year. 2,000.00 2,000.00
Subscribed & fully Paid up
2,00,000 (P.Y. 2,00,000} Equily shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by |DB! Bank
Limited, Holding Company, and no Fresh allotment has been made in the year. 2.000.00 2,000.00
Total 2,000.00 2,000.00

b. Terms & Conditions

The Company has only ona class of shares referred 10 as equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ Each holder of equity shares is entilied to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are efigible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of ail preferential amounts, in

proportion to their shareholding.

¢. Shareholders having more than 5 % shareholding

Name of Shareholder

Asg at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Number Percentage Number Percentage
IDB! Bank (the holding company }* 200,000 100% 200,000 100%
* Incfudes beneficial ownership of 6 Shares, where nominee shareholders are different,
d. Reconciliation of number of Equity shares
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Number of shares al the beginning 200,000 2,000.00 200,000 2,000.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Number of Shares at the end 200,000 2,000.00 200,000 2,000.00
e. Change in Shareholding of promoters
Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number % of total shares | Number % of total shares
IDBi Bank (the holding company }* 200,000 100% 200,000 100%

* Includes beneficial ownership of 6 Shares, where nominee shareholders are different.

wd




Note 4 ; Reserves & Surplus

DBl MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs in Thousands}‘

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

a. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance

{+} Current Year Transfer

{-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

h. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance

(+) Current Year Transfer

(-} Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

c. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance
Add ; Securities premium credited on Share issue
Less . Premium Utilised for various reasons
Premium on Redemption of Debentures
For Issuing Bonus Shares
Closing Balance

d. Dehenture Redemption Heserve

Opening Balance
() Current Year {ranster

{-) Written 8ack in Currant Year
Closing Balance

e. Revaluation Reserve
Opening Batance

{+) Current Year Transfer

(-) Written Back in Current Year
Closing Balance

f. Share Optiens Qutstanding Account
Opening Balance

{+} Current Year Transfer

{-} Written Back in Current Year

Closing Balance

g. Profit & Loss
Opening balance
{+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the cument year

Less: Interim Dividend distributed to the equity shareholders during F.Y. 2024-

25
Closing Balance

14,398.39
5,215.03
(4,000.00)

15,214.23
(815.84)

15,613.42

14,398.39

15,613.42

14,398.39

w .
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Note 5 : Other Current Liabilities

IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

i
'

{Rs. in Theusands)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Statutory Dues Payable 15.74 -
Provisions for expenses 141.66 . 142.40
4
Total 157 .44 142.40

Note 7 : Non- Current Investmenis

{Rs. in Thousands}

As at March 31, 1 As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Investment in Mutual Funds
Quoted
investments in LIC MF Liquid Fund {Direct- Growth) * 1,421.26 15,032.33
[ units held 307.048 units (P.Y, 5154.548)

1,421.26 16,032.33

Aggregate Book value of Quoted investments
{ C.Y. Market Vatue Rs. 1,445.95 thousand)
(P.Y. Market Value Rs, 22,603.51 thousand) 1,421.26 16,032,533

* Post merger of 1D8! Mutual Fund Schemes with LIC MF schemes, the investment in IDBI MF Liquid Fund scheme as on
July 28, 2023 is now merged with LIC MF and it is renamed as LIC MF Liquid Fund, Pursuant to this, 10Bi MF Trustee {as
investor) received new 5339.80% units of LIC MF Liquid fund at NAV ¢f Rs.4179.9072 per unit of LIC MF Liquid Direct
Growth Fund aggregating Rs.22319.89 thousand as on July 28, 2023 which is equivalent fo the market valuef NAY of D8I
MF Liguid fund -Direct Growth scheme i.6.9016.85 unifs @ Rs.2475.3541 per unt aggregaling Rs.22319.89 thousand). It
may be menticned that while computing capital gain on the above investments, the cost as weil as date of acquisition of

units remain same as it was for (DBl MF Liguid Fund.

A/
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IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note 8 ; Deferred Tax Asset

{Rs. in Thousands}

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Deferred Tax Asset
Excess of net block of Fixed Assets as per books of accounts over net biock of
fixed assets for lax purpose 66.02
Total - 602
%
Note 9 : Cash and Bank Balances {Rs. in Thousands)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Cash and cash eguivalents
a. Cash on hand - -
b. Chegues, drafts on hand
c. Balances with banks In
(i} Current Account 12.42 16.45
sub total (a) 12,42 16.45
QOther Bank Balances
a. Balances with banks
{i) in Depsit Account jwith malurities of more than 3 months but less
than 12 month) 15,640.00 -
(i) Earmarked Balances {eg/- unpaid dividend accounts) .
- Margin meney -
- Security against borrowings -
- Guarantees -
- Other Commitments - -
b. Others (specify nature} - -
sub total (b) 15,640.00 -
Total (a+h) 15,652.42 16.45
Note 10 : Short Term Loans and Advances {Rs. in Thousands)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2025 2024
Advances Taxes (net of Provision) 62.66 101.24
Balance with revenue authorities 603.23 235.36
Total 665.59 336.60
Note 11 : Other Current Assets {Rs. in Thousands)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Partictars 2025 2024
Deposit 10.00 10.00
interest Accured on FDR 21.25 -
31.25 14.00

A
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DBl MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED .
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

3

Note 16: Segment Reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing Trusteeship Fees to Mutual Fund. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per
the Accounting Standard {AS-17) "Segment Reporting". The Company has ne office or assets outside India.

Hote 17: Related Party Disclosures
As required ynder Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) ~"Refated Party Disclosure" the related parties of the Company are as follows:

List of related parties and relationship:
Iindividuals having control with refatives & associates
INIL |

Key Management Personsef
Shri lswar Padhan

[Neminee Director

Holding Company

IDBI Bank Limited

[Holding Company

Entities owned or significantly influenced by Directors andlor key management personnel or their relative and with
whem Company has nat entered into transactions during the year

Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)

Promoter Hoiding Company

IDB! Capital Market & Securities Limited

Subsidiary of Holding Company

IDBI Asset Management Limitad

Subsidiary of Holding Company

DB Intech Limited

Subsidiary of Holding Company

IDB! Trustesship Services Limited

Subsidiary of Holding Company

Biotach Consartium India Limited

Associates of Holding Company

North Eastern Development Finance Corporaticn
Limited

Associates of Holding Company

National Securities Depository Limited

Associates of Holding Company

Investment Corporation Limited

Associates cf Holding Comgany

Transactions with related parties:

iRs, in Thousands)

. Forthe yearended | For the year ended March
Name of Party Nature of Transaction March 31, 2025 31, 2024
IGBI Bank Limited i flow In Current account held with IDBI Bank 47 602.50 1797.20)
Outflow from Currant account held with IDBI Bank 47.606.53 171713 -
{DBI Bank Limiled Term Deposits Taken 35,540.00 0.00; ¢
Term Deposits Redeemed 19,900.00 0.00;
IDB! Asset Management Limited Secreleriat Feg & Accounts Service Fes 0.00 72.28
1DB! Bank Limited Interest earned on Fixed Deposits 1,051.64 (.00
National Securities Depository Limited Annual Custody Fee 5.00 5.00
Balance outstanding with related parties:
Name of Pariy Nature of Transaction As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
IDBI Bank Limited Equity Capital 2,000.00 2.060.60;
IDBI Bank Limited Current Account 12.42 16.45)
IDBi Bank Limited Fixed Deposits (Including interest accrued thergon) 15,661.25 C.00) .
Natlenal Securities Depositary Limited Deposit 10.00 10.00

Note 18: Deferred Tax asset /{Liability)

In accordance with Notified Accounting Standard 22 (AS-22), Accounting for taxes on Income, the major components of deferred tax as at March 31, 2025 are as foliows:

Deferred Tax asset f{Liability)

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

{pening baiance - Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilty) 56.02 52,58 -
Timing Difference on account of depreciation (65.02) 36.58]
Closing Balance of DTANDTL) as at March 31, 2025 {0.00) 91.53
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IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED
Accompanying Notes lo the Financial Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in s, Thousand)

Note 20: Disctosures under Accourting Standard (AS} - 24- Discontinuing Operations:

Subsequent to acquisition of majorily shareholding of IDBI Bank Ltd (IDB! Bank is sponsor and major shareholder of IDB Asset Management Lid & IDBI MF
Trustee Company Limited) by LIC in the year 2019, LIC also considered lo be sponsor (through IDBI AMG) of IDBI Mutuai Fund. As LIC has already
sponsored LIC Mutual Fund and having majority shareholding in LIC Mutual Fund Asset Management Lid, in terms of SE8I (Mutual Fund) Regulaticns 1996,
LIC cannot have 10% or more shareholding in another AMG which is managing other mutual fund. In view of this, IDBI AMC and LIC MF AMC entered into
scheme tansfer agreement on December 29, 2022 for transfer of IDBI schemes lo LIC MF for a consideration. After receiving NGC from Competition
Commission of India {CCI) on March 22, 2023 and approval from SEB! cn April 03 and May 18, 2023, IDBI MF schemes were completely merged with LIC MF
schemes on July 29, 2023. ID8I AMC is yat to surrdendsr 1DBI MF Cerlificate of Registralion. Based upon appiication of the spensor, SEBI has given
extension for surrender of license upto September 30, 2025.

As Trustee Fee being received from 1081 Mutual Fund schemes is the only source of income for IDBI MF Trustee Company Ltd (The Company) and after
transfer of schemes from DB AMC to LIC MF AMC, this income is no more available to the company. Henge, in terms of AS 24, following tisclosures are
being required:

AS 24 Disclosure Requirements

A descriplion of the discontinuing operation(s);

Disclosure as on March 31, 2025

Trusteeship of IDB! Mutual Fund Schemes, from which the company earns
trustee fee, is the only source of regular income for the company. This
component has nol associated assets and Habilities on the balance sheet of
the Company and it has nol received any consideration fram the transfer of
the schemas.

the business or geographical segment(s) in which it is reported as per AS 17,1 Trustesship Fee

Segmant Reporling;

The Scheme Transfer Agreement entered on December 29, 2022 belween
IDBI Assat Management Ltd (IAML} and LIC MF Asset Management Lid
{LIC AMC). Disclosure done for March 31, 2024.

the date and nature of the initial disclosure event;

the date ¢r perod in which the discontinuance is expected to be completed if
known or determinable;

Transfer of (08B} Mutual Fund Schemes already completed on Juiy 29,
2023.

the carrying amounts, as of the balance shest date, of the total assets to be
disposed of and the total liabilties to be settied

There is no physical asset, associated with the component heing
transferred, to be disposed off and or sellle liability pertaining to the above

imentioned component. The delail bifurcation of Assets & Habilities is given
in Appendix-l,

the amounls of revenue and expenses in respect of the ordinary activilies
attributable 1o the discontinuing operation during the current financial reporting

griod; o ) -
P The Statement showing income and expenditure account of continuing and

discontinuing operaticns is given as per Appendix:Il.

the amount of pre-tax profit or loss from ordinary aclivilies attributable to the
tiscentinuing operation during the current financial reporting period, and the
income fax expense refated thereto;

The operating cash Inflow (hefore working capital changes) attributable lo
the discontinuing operation is Nif for the current period except interest on
income fax refund of Rs.3 thousand.

the amounls of net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and
financing activities of the discontinuing operation during the current finandial
reporting perod

Note 21: Accounting on Going Congern Basis

The Company had the enly source of income from providing lrusteeship services to 1DBI Mutual Fung schemes, After transfer to all schemes by DB} AMC to
LIC MF AMC, it does not have business income from July 30, 2023 onwards. However, the Sponsor (IDBI Bank), based upen communication from
Departrnent of Investment and Public Asset Management, Ministry of Finance, Government of India {DIPAM), had approached SEBI to considar & permit
extansion of surender of DB MF License, Based upon the request, SEB! vide letter dated November 11, 2023, approved extension bl March 31, 2024
subject to certain conditions. Since the divestment process is on-going, upon Bank's requast, SEBI has been allowing time f¢ 10B! Bank/ IDBI AMC for
surrender of MF ficense and it has now since been extended upto September 30, 2025. Further the Company has adequata networth and sufficient resources
to meet its labilities and will conlinue to have investing activities. Accordingty, the management may explore opportunities to restart the Company's business
activilies. Based on the above and the management's assessment, the financial statements for the year endeg March 31, 2025 are prepared on going concern
basis,

Note 22: Payment of Dividend
Dividends paid duting the year ended March 31, 2025 include an amourt of Rs. 20/~ per equity share towards interim dividend declared and paid for the year
ended March 31, 2025. Dividends declared and paid by the Company are based on the profits available for distribution,

Note 23: Contingent Liabilities {not provided for)
There are no liabifilies, contingent in nature. All known liabiliies have been appropriately provided for in the books as on the balance sheet date.

Note 24: Earning 8 expenses in foreign currency
The company has neither earned any income nor incurred any expense in foreign currency during the year ended March 31, 2025 or the preceding financial
year

Note 25: Provision for Income Tax
Provision for current income-tax has been recognized in accordance with the provisions of section $15BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, As no business
activilies were carded out during the vear, the Income from injesest-ang Capital Gain has been considered as non-business income and the business
axpentiture incurred during the year shall be treated as busing8s i f
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iDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED

Note 22: Disclosures under Accounting Standard {AS) - 24- Discontinuing Operations:
Appendix-| Details of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2025

{Rs. In Thousands)

Continuing Operations Biscontinuing Operations Total
a ch 31,} As at March 31,|As at March 31, March 31, h 31,
ASSETS As at Mar o o 203;5 As at };0214 As at March 31, 2025 As at Marc o
Defferad Tax Assets . 66.02 . . 66,02
Properly, Plant & Equipment . 79.39 . . . 79.39
Non-current Investments 1,421.26 16,032.33 . . 1,421.26 16,032.33
Long Tenn investments in MF 1,421.26 16,032.33 1,421.26 16,032.33
Long Term Loans & Advances . .
Current Assets 16,349.56 261.81 - 101.24 16,349,564 363.05
{a} Current invesknenls - - - -
{h} Trade receivabies - -
{c) Cash and cash equivafent 15,652.42 16.45 . - i 15,652.42 16.45
(o) ShortHerm loans and advances 643,23 235.36 603.23 235.36
{e) Other current assels 10.00 16.00 10.00 10.00
{#} nterest on FD accrved 21.25 21,25 -
{g) Advance Tax and TDS recelvabie (nef of Prov) 62.66 101.24 62,66 161,24
Total Assets 17,770.82 16,430.55 - 101:24 17,770.82 16,540.79

(Rs. In Thousands)
Continuing Operations Riscontinuing Operations Total

Liabilities
e As at March 31,} As at March 31,jAs al March 31,[As at March 31, As at March 31,

As at March 31, 2028

2025 2024 2025 2024 2024

Non-current Liabilities
Current Liablfitles 157,40 . - 142.40 157,40 142.40

{i} Tolal outstaniing dues of micro enlerprises and  small antg . . .

{if) Total oulslanding dues of credilors ofhier than  micro enler) . - . .

{h) Other current iiabillies 15740 142 40 157.40 142,40

fc) Short-term provisions - . . B B
Tolat Liabiiities 157 40 . - 142.40 157.40 142.40

Appendix-li Accompanylng Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Rs. in Thousands)

Continuing Operations Discontinuing Operations Total
For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended Marchi ended March 31,| ended March| ended March For l:-\:ic)’l"ne:'; e;g;g ended March 31,
31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024 ’ 2024
Trusteeship Fees - . 1,042.37 . 1,012.37
Other income 7,955.56 - 1.04 414,11 7,958.60 414,41
Total Turnover 7,955.56 - 3,04 1,426.48 7,958,60 1,426,48
Secretarial and Account Senvice Fee .00 0.00 0.00 72.29 0.00 72.29
Director Sitting Fees 1550.00 1030.00 0.08 685.00 15390.00 1725.00
Depreciation 50.95 106.46 0.00 52.43 50,95 158,89
Olher Operating Expenses 430.30 135,52 0.00 148.26 430,30 333.78
Operating Expenses 2671.25 1271.98 0.0 1017.98 2071.25 2289.96
Prior Period Expenses 0 0 . - . -
Exceptional Item 0 0
Impairment Losses 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Pre-Tax Proflt from Operating Activites 5,884.31 (1,271.,98} 3.04 408.50 5,887.35 (863.48)
income Tax Expenses {671.56) 11.06 {0.78) 36.58 672.32) 47.64
- Current tax - current year (605,54} . {0.76) . -606.30 0.00
- Earlier years (short/{excess)) - 36.58 .00 36.58
- MAT credit / Write off 0.00 0.00
- Deferred tax expense {66.02) 11,06 . - -66.02 11.06
Profit / (Loss) fram operating activites after Taxes 5,212.75 (1,260.92) 2,28 445,08 5,215.03 (815.84)




IDBI MF TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED ,
Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement for the Year ended March 31, 20257
{Amount in Rs, Thousanci}
Note 27: Details of Benami Property heid
The Company doss nol have any benami property held in its name. Thare are no proceedings, either for the current year or for the previous year, that have
been initiated on ar are pending against the Company for holding benami properly under the Benamt Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
Rules made thereunder.

Note 28: Witful Defaulter
The Company has not besn declared as williul defaulter by any bank or financial institution {as defined under fhe Companies Act 2013} or consortium thereof
or ofher lender in accordance with the guidetines on willfu! defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Note 29: Utilisation of Borrowed Funds and Share Prembum under Rule 11(e)

I. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds te any other person(s) or enlity(ies), including forsign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{A) Directly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Bengficiaries) or

(B} Provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries.

Il. The Company has not received any fund from any person{s} or anlity{ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(A} directly or indiraclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behall of the Funding Pary (Mimate
Beneficiaries) or

{B) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ullimate beneficiaries.

Hote 30: Unrecorded Ingome
The Company does not have any transaction which is nct recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrondered or disclosed as income during the
year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861

Mote 31: Crypto Currency
The Company has not fraded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year,

Note 32: Relationship with Struck Off Companies

In the opinion of the management and fo the best of their knowledge & belief, the Company has not entered into any lransactions or ¢oes not have any
oufstanding balances with the companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the current
year and the previous year,

Note 33: Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
During the year, there are no instanes of any registration. Medification or satisfaction of charges which are perding for registration, modification or satisfaction
with the Regisirar of Companies beyond the statutory partod.

Note 34: Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company is in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the number of layers prescribed under Clause {87) of
Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

Note 35: Campliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
There is ro scheme of arrangement approved by the Competent Adtharity in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year and
hence, no disclosures are required to be made by the Company in these financial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Note 36
The Company has not availed any credit facilities from banks / financial inslitutions against the security of current assets excedding Rs. 5 crores at any point
of time during the current year.

Note 37: Revaluation
The Company has not revaiued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right-of-Use Assets) during the yeer.

Note 38: Rounding off
Alf amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands in INR or decimal theraof as per the requirement
of Schedule Hil of the Companies Act, 2013, uniess otherwise stated.

Note 39
Previous year's figures have heen regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with those of the current year.
in terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP For IDBI MF Trustee Company Limited
Chartered Accountants
CA21142W I w0122 Q\/\j\ ’\l\/\-/\
5 V) e
I r/ (’W}\?‘M\ ‘ ;,«,\L} {iswar Padhan) (Sunil Bansal)
afil Dadi QQ.\\\\\“‘ g Director Director

Partner e DIN: 03560275 DIN: 00713868
Place: Mumbai :
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